LOUISIANA OFFICE OF HOMELAND SECURITY AND EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS

RESPONSE TO PROPOSER INQUIRIES
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL

FOR

DEVELOPMENT, CONDUCT, AND EVALUATION

OF

LOUISIANA’S WEAPONS OF MAS DESTRUCTION (WMD) EXERCISES
27 May 2004

1.  Page 5 Purpose:  Since Phase I is to be executed no later than March 31, 2005, does Phase II begin April 1, 2005?
That is correct.  Phase II will begin on April 1, 2005 and is to be completed not later than November 30, 2005.    

2.  Page 7, Paragraph (g):  The RFP states that the number of required Situation Manuals (SITMAN) for each exercise may range from 50 to 120.  Since publication of exercise documents comprises a major part of Other Direct Costs (ODC) in this program, may the offeror state a set number of documents provided (e.g. 50)  
For the purpose of the bid submission and review, the number of required Situation Manuals for each exercise will be 50.  Keep in mind it is impossible to know the exact number of copies needed in advance and this number may have to be negotiated at a later date.
3.  If additional documents are determined to be needed, can they be produced at an additional negotiated cost during the period of performance?
Yes.  If it is determined that the documents and cost could not be identified during the initial bid submission additional documents determined to be needed at a later date will be negotiated during the period of performance.  It is very important that you identify all costs and documents during your initial submission.  Keep in mind that the cost break down in the RFP were the minimum deliverables.  If a contractor has other cost not listed under each type of exercise in Attachment II, I recommend they be included with your bid submission. 
4.  Page 8, Paragraph (i)  The paragraph states that the SITMAN will be professionally printed.  Our understanding of “professionally printed” means materials may be produced on high-quality, professional grade reproduction equipment, not necessarily printed at a custom print shop.  Is our understanding correct?

Yes.  If your company has the means to produce the SITMAN on high-quality, professional grade reproduction equipment, then you don’t necessarily have to take it to a custom print shop.  The SITMAN should be binded, all pages should be clear, and if pictures or photos are inserted they should be in their original color.  
5.  Page 8, Paragraphs (o) and (p):  The wording “player brief” is not explained for functional and full-scale exercises.  Is this mean to be the same as an actor brief?
If not, can the purpose and contents of the “player brief” be explained?  If this does not apply, can it be deleted?
“Player brief” is a briefing for those participants who have an active role in responding to an incident by either discussing or performing their regular roles and responsibilities.   “Actors brief” is a briefing for volunteer victims who simulate specific roles during the incident.  The “player brief” and “actor brief” can be combined to include both responding participants and actors in order to review safety and other pertinent information to the incident.
6.  Page 12, paragraphs (e) and (f):  These paragraphs appear to be a duplication of each other, with paragraph (f) being more inclusive.  Please comment.  
Page 12, paragraphs (e) and (f) should be combined and changes to read “Proposers must have three to five years corporate and staff exercise experience in exercise design, conduct, evaluation, and reporting for tabletop, functional, and full-scale exercises.”
7.  Page 12, Paragraph (h):  In Paragraph (h) the proposer is required to submit references and support documentation verifying the ability to perform work of similar scope and nature.  The requirements ask for sample documents.  We have the following concerns:
(1) The documents required (AARs, EXPLANs, SITMANs, etc) are often confidential and/or proprietary.
(2) The amount of documents could become large and unwieldy for the evaluation committee making it difficult to compare sample documents.

Therefore, would it be acceptable to provide, within an appendix (no greater than 200 pages) to the proposal,

· A list of exercises the proposer has designed, developed, executed, and/or evaluated? And

· Sanitized portions of three sample documents – such as a TTX multi-media briefing, a functional exercise EXPLAN, and full-scale exercise AAR?

It is strictly up to the Proposer to decide what documents which are required are going to be sent for review to this office.  If you have documents that you want the evaluation committee to consider, they must be included.  The amount of documents you submit will be the Proposers call.  The committee will need sample documents verifying the ability to perform work of similar scope and nature.  Therefore, it would be acceptable to provide what the Proposer deems necessary and wants the committee to review and consider.  We will not put a limit on the amount of pages.
8.  Page 17, Section 6.1:  Must the required “certificate of authority” be submitted with the bid or can it be submitted later?

Must the “certificate of authority” be submitted in triplicate?
The website address provided at the pre-bid conference was not accessible.  Can the address be verified and provided?

Due to time limit consideration the “certificate of authority” may be submitted later than the bid, but before the chosen proposer is awarded a contract.
The “certificate of authority” must be submitted in 2 copies, unless the company is a bank, then the  requirement is for triplicate.

The address is http://www.legis.state.la.us/lss/lss.asp?folder=161
Page 17, Section 6.1, the Revised Statues are 12:304-306
9. Page 18, Section 6.2 Billing and Payment:  Can completed portions (i.e. IPC, MPC, and/or deliverables such as draft SITMAN, EXPLAN, etc.) of each exercise type be invoiced on a quarterly basis even if the exercise has not yet been completed and the AAR not written?
Yes. But, payment portions must be based upon clearly identifiable stages completed, which are reflected in written reports submitted with the invoices.
10.  Page 21, Paragraph C:  For which exercises is the referenced

Concept Development Meeting required?
The Concept Development Meeting is not referenced in the price pages of the RFP.  Should this meeting, if required, be listed on the appropriate price page(s)?

The referenced paragraph above applies to all Full-Scale and Functional exercises only.  In addition, the Concept Development Meeting should be included in any price you submit for Full-Scale and Functional exercises listed in Attachment II, cost breakout sheets. 

11.  Page 27/28:  Functional and Full-Scale Cost Sheet:  The word “simulator” appears in this section.  Can the use of the word as it relates to the exercise be explained?
An individual/individuals who imitates assumptions or actions that normally would be performed, but will not be during the exercise.  Some who simulates a function or task that is not physically taking place. 
12.  Reference RFP Paragraph 5.4, D. Evaluation and Review Criteria.  Please clarify “local availability.
The term “local availability” should be deleted from paragraph 5.4, D, and will have no bearing on the conduct of the evaluation.

13. In the proposal, Attachment 1.2.c and Attachment II.5, (cost information), reference is made to the requirement for a Concept Development Meeting (CDM).  The Cost Information Sheets do not show a CDM for costing purposes for the tabletop, functional, and full-scale exercises.  This requirement is an identifiable deliverable.  Request the CMD be added as cost item to each of the exercise base prices to ensure a level playing field for all bidders.
See #10 Above.
